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Anditor's report
To the shareholders of Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orascom Investment
Holding S.A.E. and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then ended, and 2
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Group's management. Management
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and applicable Egyptian laws, management
responsibility includes, designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from materjal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, management responsibility also includes selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. Except as described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraphs, we conducted our audit in
accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and applicable Egyptian laws. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financia) statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Hazem Hassan

Basis of Qualified Opinion

1- As explained in Note (14) of the Notes to the Financial Statements, the Group has significant influence
in its investments in Cheo Technology Joint Venture {Koryolink) in the Republic of North Korea,
which amounted to EGP 613.6 million as of December 31, 2022, and it has been classified as “equity
accounted investees”, and the Group also has cash balance in North Korean Banks amounting to EGP
91 million, which was classified as other financial assets as of December 31, 2022.
Koryolink operates under an international sanctions and operational and financial restrictions imposed
by the international community on Republic of North Korea, which leads to difficulties in transferring
profits abroad and repatriating funds outside the Republic of North Korea, the investment in
Koryolink is measured at cost which represents the management's best estimate of the recoverable
amount of this investment,

We were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s investment in Koryolink as well as the accuracy of the valuation of the cash balances in
North Korean Banks as of 31 December 2022, and the Group's share of the associate company's
profits in the consolidated income statement for the financial year ended December 31, 2022, and
therefore were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

2- The management didn't provide us with financial information andited by the component auditor of
Orascom Telecom Lebanon (a component) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, due to
the current circumstances in Lebanon, therefore we couldn’t obtain reasonable assurance over the
existence, accuracy, completeness and ownership of the balances and amounts of the component
company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, for a total amount of assets of EGP 73.9
million, which represents 1.8% from total assets of the Group and a total amount of liabilitdes of EGP
226.7 million, which represents 15.7% from total liabilities of the Group’s consolidated balances as of
December 31, 2022. We couldn’t perform alternative audit procedures to obtain reasonable assurance
over the existence, accuracy, completeness, and ownership of the balances and amounts for
consolidation purposes of the consolidated financial statements.

3- Other current financial assets include an amount of EGP 114 million, Investment is a balance due from
an extenal party resulting from the sale of all shares of Riza Company, owned by the Group, where
this third party has stopped paying the sale installments since February 2020 to date, we were unable
to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the recoverable amount of this balance.
Also, we couldn’t perform alternative audit procedures to verify the recoverable amount of this
balance and therefore were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were
necessary as of December 31, 2022,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary if we have obtained the audit evidences described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion
paragraphs, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E. and its
subsidiaries (the Group) as of December 31, 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting
Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulations relating to the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements.

2

KPMG Hazem Hassan

. Public Accountants and Consultants
KPMG Hazem Hassan i

Puhiic Accountants angd Consultants
2

Cairo April 4, 2023
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Orascom Investment Holding “S.A.E”
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As of

Transitaiion of Financial Statements

Originally issued in Arablc

{In thousands of EGP)

Assels

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and equipment
Investment property
Equity accounted investees
Other financial assets
Other assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Trade receivables

Other financial assets
Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Share capital

Reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the parent Company
NMon-controlling interests
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liahilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings

Other liabilities

Tax liabilities- income tax
Provisions

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note no. :

(15)
aan
(14)
(18)
1)

(20)
(18)
1)
(22)

7

(23)

(25)
(12)
(23)
(26)

(27)

9!

| " December 31, December 31,
@- 2022 2021

460,154 215,616
' 202,032 206,162
; 613,632 613,632
i 791,605 . 53,109
i — 4,000
2,067,423 1,092,519
72,739 106,254
113,600 . 86,100
i 72,282 28,524
1,699,753 1,112,630
1,958,374 - 1,333,508
- 1,586,106
1,958,374 2,919,614
4,025,197 4,012,133
577,025 577,025
701,970 . 432,319
1,311,736 614,186
2,590,731 - 1,623,530
: (10,739) 316,697
2,579,992 1,940,227
343,370 159,310
4,680 2,818
179,026 75,382
527,076 237,510
_5 49,133 280
553,488 . 395,810
: 91,205 49,702
224,903 435,571
918,729 881,363
- 953,033
918,729 1,834,396
i 1,445,805 2,071,906
:' 4,025,797 4,012,133

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (35) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and

should be read therewith,

Chief Financial Officer

Auditor’s report “attached”

Chairman
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Consolidated Statement of Income for The Year Ended

Tramsiation of Finaneial Statements

Originally issued in Arabic

Note no.
(In thousands of EGP)
Continning operations
Operating revenues &
Other income (32)
Purchases and services costs &)
Other expenses 10
Provisions no longer required /(formed) 27
Personnel costs (11)
Depreciation and amortization (12)
Impairment loss in financial assets 20 (18) (2D
Gains on fair value revaluation {18-2)
Operating profit (loss)
Finance income (13)
Finance costs (13)
Gain from foreign currencies translation (13)
Share of profit of equity accounted investments (14)
Net impairment in equity accounted investments 14
Profit (Loss) for the year before income tax
Income tax (i9)

Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing

Discontinued operations
Met operation results from discontinued operations

after tax )
Net profit / (loss} for the year

Attributable to:
QOwners of the parent company from continuing operations
QOwners of the parent company from discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests

Earning/ (Losses) per share (basic and diluted} from (28)
continuing operations — (in BGP)
Earnings per share (basic and dilnted) from (28)

discontinued operations — (in EGP)

! December 31, - December 31,
; 2022 2021

; Represented
97,518 27,922
43,303 | 200,742
(122,365) | (77,259)
(12,03 - (11,483)
: 200,066 | (62,728)
(109,802) (105,253)
(11,122) : (5,300)
(95,391) ' (68,922)
: 139,144 “
129,320 ; (102,281)
2,006 2,906
': (6/428) (13,066)
é 328,139 49,833
f 396,178 . 425,586
; (396,178) - (425,586)
453,037 (62,608)
(84,664) (50,423)
368,373 . (113,031)
59,676 974,260
428,049 - 861,229
368,423 - (113.031)
49,201 908,243
10,425 66,017
428,049 861,229
0.070 . (0.022)
0.173

0.009

- The accompanying notes from (1} to (35) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and

should be read therewith.
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.

Translation of Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for The Year Ended

Originally issized in Arabic

i December 31, December 31,
{In thousands of EGP} ! : 2021
! 2022 : Represented
Net profit for the year 428,049 :: 861,229
Other comprehensive (loss) items that may be subsequently ?
reclassified to profit or loss: '_
Translation reserve reclassified to profit or loss during the disposal | :
. . . ’ 43,339 . (297.262)
of discontinued operation : ;
Foreign operations — foreign currency translation differences 506,238 (178,616)
Total other comprehensive (loss) items for the year 549,577 e (475,878)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 977,626 ! 385,351
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company 967,201 352,235
Non-controlling interests 10,425 33,116
977,626 385,351

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (35) form: an integral part of these conselidated financial stalements and

should be read therewith.
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Transiation of Financial Statements
originally issued in Arabic
Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for The Year Ended

(In thousands of EGP) l:l::t.e December 31, 2022 _ Decemﬁ:;?el;eﬁtﬂ
Continuing operations :
Cash flows from operating activities :
Net (loss) for the year before tax 453,037 - (62,608)
Adjustments for: :
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (12) ! 11,122 5,300
Finance income {13 : (2,006) (2,906)
Finance costs (13) . 6,428 13,066
Net (gains) from foreign currencies translation (13) . (328,139) . {49,833)
Other income (32) - - (200,155}
{Gain) from fair value revaluation through profit or loss : (139,144) -
Impairment loss in financial asset : 93,391 68,922
Share of profit from equity accounted investments (14) (356,178) . {425,586}
Net impairment from equity accounted investmenis {14y 396,178 425,586
Change in provisions ' (234,438) 61,587
Change in current assets included in working capital : 27,929 (3,981)
Change in current liabilities included in working capital : 94,510 {111,806}
Cash flows (used in) operating activities : (15330) (282,414}
Inierest received 5 2,006 2,841
Net cash flows (used in) operating activities : (13324) - (279573
Cash flows from investing activities . i
Net cash outflows for investments in: :
Property and equipment . (193,552) {108,455)
Investment property - (6,351}
Gain on investment revaluation through profit or loss : (560,891) -
Net cash inflows from disposal of: '
Property and equipment . - 317
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities : (754,443) (114,494)
Cash flows from financing activities :
Interest paid (6,428) . {13,060}
Net proceeds from non-current borrowings (25) : 181,081 108,897
Net (payments) for financial liabilities (25) - (81,799
Net proceeds from financial assets . 6,726 .
borrowing payments : {280} -
Net cash flows generated from (used in) financing activities 181,099 14,038
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year from !
continuing operations : (586,668) (380,029)
Discontinued operations :
Net cash flows (used in) / generated by operating activitics ' (51,658) 243,141
Net cash flows generated by investing activities : 509,809 1,161,052
Net cash flows (used in} financing activities - (207,704)
]'di-et cha-nge in cash sfnd cash equivalents during the year from 458,151 1,196,489
iscontinued operations
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year ' (128,517) 316,460
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,112,630 343,056
Effe_ct of Change in the exc;hapge rate on cash and cash equivalents in 716,654 (2,375)
foreign currencies for continuing operations
Effect of Change in the exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents in
foreign currencies for discontinued operations . (2,025
gn P
Balance of cash and cash equivalents transferred 1o assets held for sale _ - (42,486)
Impairment of cash and cash equivalents value . (1,014) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 1,699,753 1,112,630

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (35) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and should be
read there with.
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Translation of Finaucial Statemenis
Qriginally issited In Arabic

Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2021

D N R S N D B BN

1- General information about parent of the Group

a-

=

Legal status
Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E. "the Company" (formerly Orascom Telecom Media and Technology

Holding) is an Egyptian Joint Stock Company pursuant to the provisions of the Capital Market Law no. 95
of 1992, and its executive regulations. The Company was registered at Commercial Register on
November 29, 2011, under No 394061. The Company’s Head Office located at Nile City Towers, Ramlet
Boulak — Cairo -Egypt. The Company’s duration is 25 years starting from November 29, 2011, and the
extended period from that date till December 31, 2012, is considered the first financial year.

Purpose of the Company

The Company’s purpose is to participate in establishing the joint stock and limited liability Companies that
issue securities or te increase its share capital of these companies, considering the provisions of Article 127
of the executive regulations and the regulations of the Capital Market Law. The Company may have interest
or participate, by any mean, in companies and other enterprises that have activities similar to those of the
Company or those that may assist the Company to achieve its objectives in Egypt or abroad. It may also
merge into those companies and enterprises purchase them or affiliate them pursuant to the provisions of the
law and its executive regulations.

Brief over incorporation of the Company

The Company was established as a result of legal demerger from Orascom Telecom Helding S.A E. as part
of the VimpelCom transaction. In Qctober 2010, VimpelCom Ltd. and Wind Telecom announced that both
companies had signed a merger agreement, and where Wind Telecom (formerly Wind Investment) owns
51.7% of shares of Orascom Telecom Helding SAE. “OTH”. On April 14, 2011, the demerger plan was
concluded, in order to transfer certain assets to the demerged Company that are not intended to form part of
the VimpelCom — Wind Telecom Group going forward. Those assets represent mainly OTH investments in
the Egyptian company for Mobile Services, CHEO Technology in North Korea, Orascom Telecom Ventures
SAE, as well as other investments in the media and technology sectors, including undersea cable assets,
Accordingly, the demerger plan provided that the split of OTH will be executed by way of legal demerger,
and the incorporation of Orascom Telecom, Media and Technology Holding S.A.E - OTMT (demerged
company}, which will acquire the investments excluded from the transaction. The demerger resulted in
existing shareholders of OTH holding the same percentage interest in OTMT as they hold in OTH as of the
execution date of the demerger.

2. Statement of compliance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting
Standards issued by the Minister of Investment’s decree No. (110) for year 2015 and equivalents to the
Minister of Investment’s decree No. 69) for year 2019, and applicable Egyptian laws and regulations. The
Egyptian Accounting Standards require referral to International Financial Reporting Standards “IFRS” for
certain types of transactions or events when no Egyptian Accounting Standard or legal requirement exists to
address treatment for these transactions or events.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, were approved by
the board of directors on April 3, 2023.
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Translation of Financiol Statemenis
Originaliy Issued in Arabic

Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

3- Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements

As disclosed in Note 1-C, the Company was established as a result of demerger from OTH, the new
legal status represents continued econemic body starting from the date on which the demerging
company acquired or established the subsidiaries and associates and then ownership was transferred
to the resulting demerged company.

The management of the Company considers that the substance of the demerger and establishment of
the company with the objective of transferring ownership subsidiaries and associates and continuation
of its activities under the umbrella of 2 new legal entity, is considered a common control transaction.
The transferred entities pursuant to the demerger plan were under the control of same main
shareholders both before and after the demerger and control is not considered temporary, and so
transactions under common control is cut of scope of the Egyptian Accounting Standard (29) and
International Accounting Standard (IFRS 3).

In the absence of a specific guidance in Egyptian Accounting Standards, EAS 5 requires management
to select and apply an appropriate accounting policy. Management used its judgement in developing
and applying an accounting policy to account for its investments in subsidiaries and associates
transferred as part of the demerger as follow:

Although the legal acquisition of subsidiaries was through transfer of shares of equity ownership
certificates in application of the demerger decision which was taken in December 2011, the net assets
of the company were consolidated through the spin off process as a continuing economic entity under
the company’s control from the actual date on which the demerger company has acquired the
subsidiaries or incorporated them and so the statement of changes in equity includes the retained
earnings of these entities during the period from controlling or incorporating these companies by the
demerger company.

A) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, except for
financial derivatives that are measured at fair value, and financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss. The historical cost depends mainly on the fair value of the consideration transferred
to obtain assets.

B) Presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian pounds, which is the Company’s

functional currency. All financial information presented in Egyptian pounds has been rounded to
the nearest thousand except for earnings per share for the year / period, unless otherwise stated in
the consolidated financial statements or notes,

4- Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the same accounting policies that are
followed on an ongoing basis when preparing the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements, the accounting policies have been followed consistently in all periods presented in
consolidated financial statements.

4.1 Basis of preparing the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the parent
company and companies controlled by the company (its Subsidiaries) as of the financial position
date. Control is achieved where the Group has the following:

- Power over the investee.
- Exposure or right to variable returns through its contribution to the investee.

- The ability to use his authority over the investee in order to influence the amount of proceeds he
receives from it.
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

The parent company should reassess the control of the investee if the facts and circumstances indicate
that there are variables for one or more of the three control elements mentioned above.

The consolidated statement of income includes the income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year as of the effective date of acquisition or the effective date of disposal as
appropriate. The total income of the subsidiaries is distributed between the shareholders of the
holding company and the non-controlling interests even if the negative balance of the non-controlling
interests {(deficit) arises.

The necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of the Group companies whenever
necessary, making their accounting policies consistent with the accounting policies applicable to
other Group companies.

All transactions, balances, income and expenses between the Group companies are eliminated on
consolidation of the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. When the Group loses absolute or joint control
of a subsidiary or jointly controlled enterprise and instead retains significant influence over it, it
recognizes the remaining investment as an investment in an asgociate and measures it at its fair value
at the date of the loss of ultimate or joint control. The fair value of the investment remaining on the
date on which the joint or absolute control was lost is considered as the cost on initial recognition of
the investment in an associate company.

4-2 Business combination

Business combinations (acquisitions) are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination transaction is measured at fair value, which is
calculated on the basis of the total fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred from the
Group and the liabilities incurred by the Group in favour of the former owners of the acquire as well
as the equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquire.

Goodwill is measured on the basis that it represents an increase in (1) Total: the consideration
transferred, and any rights to the owners of non-controlling interests in the acquired entity, and the
fair value of the share, which the company acquired owned in the company's ownership rights
acquired before the acquisition date (if any) for (2) Net values: Assets acquired and liabilities incurred
at the date of acquisition. If, after reassessment shows that the net acquired assets by the values and
obligations incurred over the total: the consideration transferred, and any rights to the owners of non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity, and the fair value of the acquirers share in the acquired
company’s owners’ equity before the date of acquisition (if any) then the increase would be
recognized in the profit or loss for the period. (bargain puzchase}.

For non-controlling interests that represent current equity interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the net assets of the entity in liquidation, they may be measured at initial
recognition either at fair value or in the proportionate share of the non-controlling interests in the
recognized values of the net assets of the acquired - The measurement basis for each acquisition
transaction is selected separately.

In Group Entities under Common Control, the Group treats the differences between the cost of
business combination and the Group's share in the carrying amount of the net assets and contingent
consideration of the acquired entity as a reserve for the consolidation of a business in equity if the
acquisition does not result in Change in the principle of absolute control of the Group over the
enterprises or companies that have been assembled before and after the acquisition. The same policy
is also applied if the Group acquires a proportion of the non-controlling interests' interest in the
subsidiary or the Group dispossesses a percentage of its ownership in the subsidiary but retains
control of the subsidiary.

8
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes te the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

In this case, the fair value of the net assets and contingent consideration of the acquired entity is not
determined until the date of initial control, taking into account changes in equity items that occurred
during the period from the date of initial control until the date of increasing the control share.

The non-controlling interests in an acquire is initially measured at the non-controlling interest
proportionate share in the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent consideration recognized

at the acquisition date,

Orascom Investment Holding (the parent company) currently owns directly and indirectly the

following subsidiaries:

Direct and
indirect interest

Entity name Segment Country in entity
Oracap Holding company (Free zone) Media and Technology Egypt 99.96%
Oracap Far Bast Ltd. Media and Technology Malta 100 %
Osorcon company Others Northern Korea 100%
Orascom Telecomn Lebanon Management services Lebanon 99.8%
OIH Renewables SARL Other Luxembourg 100 %
Victoire coop Investment Holding Investment Property Netherlands 100 %
Victoire B,V, Investment Property Netherlands 100 %
Victorie 2 (Brazil) Investment Propeny Brazil 100 %
Victorie 9 (Brazil) Investment Property Brazil 100 %
Victorie 11 {(Brazil} Investment Proparty Brazil 100 %
Victoria 13 (Brazil) Investment Property Brazil 100 %
Victorie 17 (Brazil) Investment Properly Brazil 100 %
Yictorie 18 (Brazil) Investment Froperty Brazil 100 %
Victorie 19 (Brazil) Investment Property Brazil 100 %
O-Capital for Energy Energy Egypt 99.2 %
O-Capital for Services and Construction Energy Egypt 092 %
Orascom Telecom Venture “S.AE” Media and Technology Egypt 100 %
Orascom Prisme Pyramids Entertainment “S.AE” Other Epypt 70%
Orascom Pyramids Entertainment “S.A.E” Other Epypt 100 %
Orascom Pyramids for Tourist Establishments Oiher Egypt 100 %
OSL for Entertainment Other Egypt 100 %
OIH Senzgal Other Egypt 100%
Afrigate Other Epypt 100%
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Orascom Investment Holding S.AE.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-3 Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence on through participating in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint contral over
those policies.

The resulis and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Investments classified as held for sale, are accounted for in
accordance with EAS 32 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, where they
are stated at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the assoctate,
less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the investor’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is
accounted for in accordance with EAS 2% Business Combination, Therefore:

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is
recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is assessed for impairment as part of the investment,

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is excluded from the carrying amount of the
investment and is instead recognized immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment was acquired.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's intersst in the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case appropriate provision is made for impairment for
that asset.

The Group owns investment in associate as the following:

rrrrrroorrrrrEREm ST m S

Segment Countr Direct and indirect
interest in entity

CHEO Technology JV (Koryolink) Mobile phone services ~ North Korea GO%*
(*) The investment Percentage has been decreased from 75% to 60% during 2022 (Note no. 14).

4-4 Foreign currencies franslation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its fanctional currency).

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position
of each Group entity are expressed in Egyptian pound, which is the functional currency of the Group
and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

10
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

In preparing the separate financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies
other than Egyptian pounds are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated to the Egyptian pound at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign curmrencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated,

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value, where
translation differences are recognized as part of changes in fair value.

At the date of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Groups
foreign and local subsidiaries whose reporting currencies are different from the presentation currency
of the Group (EGP), are expressed in Egyptian Pound using exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date, equity items are expressed in Egyptian Pound using the historical exchange rates at the
date of acquisition or incorporation, Income and expense items are franslated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and recognized in
the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve.

The exchange rates applied in relation to the EGP are as follows:

Closing rate as of Average rate for

the year ended
December 31, 2021  December 31, 2021
American Dollar 13.660 15.652
Pakistan Rupee 0.089 0.096
Brazilian Real 2.811 2.901
17.80 18.52

Euro

4-3 Fixed assets and depreciation

All items of fixed assets are reported in the balance sheet at historical cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost of an item of fixed assets includes expenditures that are
directly atiributable to the acquisition of the item.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized separately, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they have been incurred. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
fixed assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation of the depreciable assets is based on the straight-line method and is charged to income
statement over the useful life of each Group of assets.

11
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The following are estimated nseful lives for fixed assets that are used to calculate depreciation:

Asset Years
Buildings 50 Years

Cellular equipment 8~ 15 Years
Machines 5-10 Years
Computer equipment 3~35 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5—10 Years
Vehicles 3 -6 Years
Leasehold improvements 3 -8 Years

4-6 Projects under Construction

Projects under construction are carried at cost, less accumulated impairment, if any. Costs include all
costs associated with the acgnisition of the asset and bringing it to be ready for its intended nse.
Projects under construction are transferred to fixed assets when they become ready for their intended
use and then start its depreciation using the assumptions that are used in depreciate the same types of
the assets.

4-7 Intangible assets

Non-monetary assets that don’t have physical substance, but can be identified separately, acquired
for operating purpose, and expected to generate future economic benefits is treated as intangible
assets, Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) include computer systems, telecom network licenses,
right of use, and trademarks. Intangible assets are measured at cost, which represents the cash price
at the initial recognition. In case of deferral of payments for periods exceed the normal credit terms,
difference between cash price and total amount is recognized as interest. Intangible assets are carried
at cost net of amortization and impairment losses, subsequent expenditures on intangible assets are
capitalized over the carrying amount of the asset, when and only when, these expenditures increase
the future economic benefits of the asset or assets, while other expenditures are charged to income
statement. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, unless the
useful lives of intangible assets are not identified, an impairment test is performed annually.

4-8 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets at
acquisition date, Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal. This applies as well on investments in
associates, where goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment the Group’s
policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described above at "Investments in
associates.

12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-9 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
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On annual basis, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset {or cash-generafing unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

4-10 Investment property

a) Recognifion and initial measurement

This item includes buildings leased to lessee under operating leases. Investments property are
carried at cost including transaction costs less the accumulated depreciation and impairment, the
carrying amount of investment property, useful life and depreciation method is reviewed on annual
basis. The fair values of these investments are disclosed at the balance sheet date unless it is not
practical to be determined in a reliable manner. In this case such fact shall be disclosed.

b) Depreciation

Is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of the investment properties. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Assets Years
Leased units 50
13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financizal Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-11 Financial instruments

Financial assets

Business model, classification, and measarement

Business model assessment

The Group assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilitics or expected cash flaws or realizing cash flows through the sale of the
assets.

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management,

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

T

=

business model) and how those risks are managed,
How managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- 0 - =

3

i o el A o o o e

The frequency, volume, and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL,

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the Group considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- Prepayment and extension features; and

- Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

- A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally,
for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual amount, & feature that permits or
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

14
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

- Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

Financial assets at FVTPL losses from changes in fair value, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognized in profit or loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost vsing the

i . effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
Financial assets at . ) . ] .
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
amortized cost . L }
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on

derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
Debt investments at FVOCI  and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net

gains and losses are recognized in OCI On derecognition, gains and

losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or Joss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

Equity investments at recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
men

FVOCI represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net

gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial ligbilities — classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognized in profit or loss.

Disposals
« Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
» Financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and

the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or contingent liability ) is recognized
in profit or loss.

15
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-11-1 Impairment

As allowed by EAS No. (47), the Group applies two impairment models for financial assets measured
at amortized cost and FYQCI:

the simplified approach model for trade receivables related to fees and commission under the scope
of EAS No. (48) “Revenues from Contracts with Customers”; and

the general approach model for Brokerage customers and other financial assets, including financial
assets under the scope of EAS No. (47).

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement within the
credit losses expenses.

4-11-2 Simplified approach model

With regards to trade receivables related to fees and commission, the simplified approach modei for
determining the impairment is performed in two steps:

any trade receivable in default is individually assessed for impairment; and

a general reserve is recognized for all other trade receivables (including those not past due) based on the
determined historical loss rates and carryforward losses expectations.

4-11-3 General approach model

The general model impairment requirements of EAS No. (47) apply to all credit exposures that are
measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, except the cases covered by simplified model as abovementioned.
For purposes of the impairment policy below, these instruments are referred to as (“Financial Assets™).
The determination of impairment losses and allowance moves from an incurred credit loss model
whereby credit losses are recognized when a defined loss event occurs under previcus accounting
standard, to an expected credit loss model under EAS No. (47), where allowances are taken upon initial
recognition of the Financial Asset, based on expectations of potential credit losses at the time of initial
recognition.

The Grouyp uses three main components to measure ECL. These are Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss
Given Default (“LGD”) and Exposure at Default (“BAD™).

The probability of tripping the corresponding parties is derived from internal group assessments. The
Group allocates the probability of default for each exposure of the counterparty based on the economic
environment in which the customer works, considering the relevant quantitative and qualitative
information and quality available,

Loss estimates when you stumble are independent of the client's probability of default. Loss models
when tripping ensure that the main drivers of losses, including the quality of the warranty, are reflected
in the loss factor when the specified stumble.

Exposure when its stumbles is defined as the expected amount of credit risk to the counterparty at the
time of its stumble. The exposure model is designed when you default on the life of the financial asset
considering the expected payment files.

EAS No. (47) Introduces a three-stage approach to impairment for Financial Assets that are not credit-
impaired at the date of origination or purchase. This approach is summarized as follows:

Stage 1: The Group recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. This represents the portion of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected
within 12 months of the reporting date, if credit risk has not increased significantly after initial
recoguition.

Stage 2: The Group recognizes a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses for those Financial Assets which are considered to have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. This requires the computation of ECL based on lifetime probability
of default, lifetime loss given default and lifetime exposure at default that represents the probability of
default occurring over the remaining lifetime of the Financial Asset. Allowance for credit losses are
higher in this stage because of an increase in credit risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being
considered compared to 12 months in Stage 1.
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.,
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 20222

- Stage 3: The Group recognizes a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
via the expected recoverable cash flows for the asset, for those Financial Assets that are credit impaired.
For further detail see following paragraph “Credit-impaired Financial Assets in Stage 37,

- The Group calculates expected credit losses for each financial asset individually. Similarly, the
determination of the need to transfer between stages is made on an individual asset basis.

4-11-4 Significant increase in credit risk

- Under EAS No. (47), when determining whether the credit risk (i.e., risk of default) of a Financial Asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes guantitative and
qualitative information based on the Group’s historical experience, credit risk assessment and forward-
looking information (including macro-economic factors). The assessment of significant credit
deterioration is key in determining when to move from measuring an allowance based on 12-month
ECLs to one that is based on lifetime ECLs (i.e., transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2).

4-11-5 Credit-impaired financial assets

- At each reporting date, the Group reviews the indicators for impairment of receivables balances, in order
to take the necessary actions to account for impairment against the amounts that may not be collected
from customers. The study is necessary to ensure that clients own and maintain a portfolio of shares to
cover the debt owed to them - enabling the Group to take necessary measures to preserve the Group's
right in case of any amounts due from customers and failure or delay in payment. The calculation using
aging reports will not be applicable on brokerage receivables as there is no specified or expected time
frame for clearing or collection, however a provisicn is to be formed for the difference between debit
due balance and the value of owned shares (collateral).

- For Financial Assets considered to be credit-impaired, the ECL allowance covers the amount of loss the
Group is expected to incur, The estimation of ECLs is done on a case-by-case basis for non-
homogeneous portfolios, or by applying portfolio-based parameters to individual Financial Assets in
these portfolios via the Group’s ECL model for homogeneous portfolios.

- Forecasts of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered. The lifetime expecied
losses are estimated based on the probability-weighted present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group under the contract; and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive,

4-11-6 Collateral for financial assets considered in the impairment analysis
- EAS No. (47) requires cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enbancement to be reflected
in the ECL calculation. The following are key aspects with respect to collateral and guarantees:
- Eligibility of collateral, i.e. which ccliateral should be considered in the ECL calculation;
- Collateral evaluation, i.e. what collateral (liquidation) value should be used; and

- Projection of the available collateral amount over the life of a transaction.

4-11-6 Monetary accounting estimates

- The accounting estimates and judgments related to the impairment of Financial Assets is a critical
accounting estimate because the underlying assumptions used can change from period to period and
may significantly affect the Group’s results of operations.

- In assessing assets for impairments, management judgment is required, particularly in projecting future
economic information and scenarios where circumstances of economic and financial uncertainty, when
developments and changes to expected cash flows can occur both with greater rapidity and less
predictability. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may differ from the estimates
used by management and consequently may cause actual losses to differ from reported allowances.
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Qrascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-12 Financial obligations and equity instruments issued by the Group

Classification of instruments as equity or liability

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
group's contracts at the date of issue of those instruments.

Equity instrunments

Equity instruments represent any contract that gives the group the right to the net assets of an entity
after deducting all of its obligations.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are stated at the value of the proceeds received or the net value
of the assets transferred, less the costs of issuance directly attributable to the transaction,

Financial obligations

Financial liabilities have been classified as either “fair value through profit or loss” or other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial obligations include balances of loans, suppliers, balances due to related parties and
other credit balances. The first financial obligations are recognized at fair value (the value received)
after deducting the transaction cost, provided if it is subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate and the distribution of interest expense over the relevant periods It is based
on the actual return.

The effective interest rate method is a method for calculating the amortized cost of financial
cbligations and charging interest ¢xpense over the relevant periods.

The effective interest rate is the rate at which future cash payments are discounted over the estimated
life of the financial liability or any less appropriate period.

4-13 De-recognition of financial instruments from books:

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

4-14 Effective interest rate method:

The effective interest rate method is used to calculate the amortized cost of financial assets that are
debt instruments and to distribute the return over the relevant periods. The effective interest rate is the
rate at which future cash receipts (which includes all fees and payments or receipts between parties to
the contract that are part of the effective interest rate and includes transaction costs and any other
premiums) are discounted over the estimated life of the financial assets or any appropriate less period.

The return on all debt instruments is recognized based on the effective interest rate, except for those
classified as financial assets at fair value through profits or losses, where the return on them is included
in the net change in their fair value.
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are being determined using
the weighted average method to price goods sold. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

4-16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks, demand deposits and short-term,
highly liquid investments, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value of and with a maturity date of three months or less
from the acquisition date.

4-17 Income taxes and deferred taxes

A provision for probable tax claims is generally recognized based on management comprehensive
study of prior years' tax assessments and disputes.
An estimated income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss in each reporting period, while actual
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income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss at year-end.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on the temporary differences between the assets and
liabilities tax basis set by the Egyptian Tax Law and its executive regulations, and their reported
amounts per the accounting principles used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
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statements,

Current tax payable is calculated based upon taxable profit of the year as determined in accordance
with applicable local laws and regulations using tax rates enacted on the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realized, based on tax rates and tax laws prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly o equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences while deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for using the balance sheet method and are reported
in the balance sheet as non-current assets and liabilities.

4-18 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of
past events and that it is probable that an outfiow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation, the costs to settle related cobligations are probable and a reliable estimate is made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, it’s
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where discounting is used, the carrying
amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is
recognized in the profit or loss as finance costs.

4-19 Non-current assets held for sale {or disposal Groups}

A non-current asset Classified (or disposal Group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use .For this to be the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

case the asset (or disposal Group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal Groups) and its sale
must be highly probable. Management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal
Group) In addition; the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification, unless delay results from external events beyond contro] of
the Group and that sufficient evidences exist that the Group is committed to a sale plan.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

4-20 Revenue recognition

3-

The Company recognize revenue depending on the following five steps:

1- Defining the contract with the customer.

2- Defining the contractual obligation to transfer gocds and/or services (known as performance
obligations).

3- Determine the transaction price.

4- Allocate the transaction price to the specified performance obligations based on the stand-alone
selling price for each good or service.

5- Recognition of revenue when the related performance obligation is satisfied

The company’s revenues are as follows:

Revenues from technical support

Revenues from technical support are recognized in the profit or loss over the term on which the
services are rendered and based on the contracis with subsidiaries and associates

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable until maturity.

Dividends income

Dividends income from equity investments other than associates is recognized in the profit and loss
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have been established; the cost of the investment is
reduced by the dividends related to the pre-acquisition period which represents recovery of the
acquisition cost.

Revenues from investment property
Revenues from investment property are recognized on accrual basis (on net amount less any

deductions} accrued to income statement, based on the straight-line method through rental contract
duration.

4-21 Employees® benefits

Shori-term employees’ benefits

Salaries, wages, paid vacations, sick leave, bonus, and other non-cash benefits in favour of
employees’ services for the Group, are recognized on an accrual basis in the same period these
services have been rendered.

4.22 Dividends distribution

Dividends declared to the shareholders of the Parent company, non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries, board of directors’ remunerations, and employees’ share of profits are recognized as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which these dividends have been approved by
each Group company’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis are recognized immediately in the profit and loss, except for borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, or construction of qualifying assets, which are added to the cost of
those assets until such assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

4-24 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

4-25 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner which is consistent with the internal reporting
information provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors of the Company.

4.26 Estimation of fair value

Applying the accounting policies stated in Note (4) requires from management to use estimates and
assumptions in determining the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources.

The fair value of financial instruments quoted in an active market depends on observable market
prices at the date of the financial statements, while the fair value of non-quoted financial instruments
is determined using valuation techniques based on market conditions available at the financial
statements date.

4-27 Legal reserves
In accordance with the articles of association, 5% of the annual net income is required to be

transferred to a legal reserve until its balance reaches 50% of issued capital. The company is required
to resume transfer of net profit to the legal reserve once its balance falls below this percentage. This
reserve can be used for covering the incurred losses and for the increase of the Company capital
subject to the approval of the shareholders in general assembly.

4-28 Emplovees’ profit share
Each company of the Group which operates in Egypt is obliged to pays 10% of its cash dividends as

profit sharing to its employees to the sum of their annual salaries. Profit sharing is recognized as a
dividend distribution through equity and as a liability in the provision which distribution has been
approved by shareholders. And since dividends’ distribution is the right of the company’s
sharcholders so the liability is not recognized for the employees’ s dividends related to profits that
are not declared for distribution till the financial statements date (Retained earnings).
4.29 Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method.
4-30 Fair value estimation
s The fair value of a financial instrument traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active, if guoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are
included in Level 1.
¢ The fair value of instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example privately negotiated
derivatives between two parties) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include quoted market prices or
dealer and broker quotes for similar instruments and other techniques such as option valuation models
and discounted cash flows.
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-31 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of uncertainty estimates
Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of the Group’s accounting

policies, according to the Egyptian accounting standards, requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the presentation of these statements and about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Those estimates and associated assumptions are based on management historical experience and other
factors that are considered relevant under current circumstances and conditions in which carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities are determined. Actual results may differ from these estimates
stgnificantly if surrounding conditions and factors changed.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the significant items on which estimates, and personal judgements are used:

4-31-1 Review the main conditions of contractnal agreements
The management reviews its assumptions and judgements including those used to conclude on the
extent of the Group’s ability to control, jointly control, or exercise significant influence on its investees
whenever a significant event or amendment to the conditions prevailing in its contractual agreements.

4-31-2 Valuation of financial Instruments

For some financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and included in the financial
statements such as financial derivatives. Management estimated its fair value using valvation
techniques based on inputs and assumptions, some linked to quoted market prices and other non-linked
to market prices but depend on management's estimates. Management used acceptable option
valuation models during the period in estimating the fair value of these financial instruments.

4-31-3 Impairment of non-current assets excluding goodwill
Non-current assets are reviewed to determine whether there are any indications that the net carrying
amount of these assets may not be recoverable and that they have suffered an impairment loss that
needs to be recognized. In order to determine whether any such elements exist it is necessary to make
subjective measurements, based on information obtained within the Group and in the market
considering the past experience.
When indicators exist that an asset may have become impaired, the Group estimates the impairment
loss using suitable valuation techniques. The identification of elements indicating that a potential
impairment exists and estimates of the amount of the impairment, depend on factors that may vary in
time, affecting management’s assessments and estimates.

4-31-4 Estimating the useful lives for fixed assets and depreciation method and the salvage value
Management reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at the end of each year, the review
process involve assessment of the surrounding circumstances and factors affecting fixed assets” useful
lives e.g. developments in technology and change in the pattern those assets are used, if the rates used
are determined to be inappropriate, rates are adjusted accordingly.
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4-31-5 Recognition and measurement of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Current and deferred income taxes are determined by each Group entities in accordance with the
applicable tax laws to each country in which the Group entities domiciled.

The company’s profit is subject to income tax, which require using of significant estimates to
determine the total income tax liability, As determining the final tax liability for some transactions
could be difficult during the period, the company record current tax liability according to its best
estimate about the taxable treatment of that transactions and the possibility of incurring of additional
tax charges that may result from tax inspections. And when a difference arising between the final tax
assessment and what have been recorded, such difference is recorded as income tax expense and
current tax liability in the current pericd and is considered as a change in accounting estimates.

In order to recognize deferred tax assets, management uses assumptions about the availability of
sufficient future tax profits to allow the use of the recognized deferred tax assets, and management
uses assumptions related to determining the tax rate announced at the date of the financial statements,
at which it is expected that both assets and tax liabilittes will be settled in the future.

This process requires the use of multiple and complex estimates in the estimation and determination
of taxable vessels and taxable and deductible tax differences arising from the difference between the
accounting basis and the tax basis of certain assets and liabilities. In addition to estimating the
possibility of using deferred tax assets arising from tax losses in the light of estimating the future tax
profits and future plans for each activity of the Group companies.

4-31-6 Goodwill

The impairment test on goodwill is carried out by comparing the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units and their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is the
higher of “fair value less costs to sell” or its value in use. This complex valuation process entails the
use of methods such as the discounted cash flow method, which uses assumptions to estimate future
cash flows, The recoverable amount depends significantly on the discount rate used in the discounted
cash flow model as well as the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for the
extrapolation.

4.31-7 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management assess events and circumstances that might led to a commitment on the company’s side
resulting from performing its normal economic activities, management uses estimates and assumptions
to assess whether the provision’s recognition conditions have been met at the financial statement date,
and analyse information (o assess whether past events led to current liability against the company and
estimates the future cash outflows and timing to settle this obligation in addition to selecting the
method which enable the management to measure the value of the commitment reliably.

4.32 Lease contracts

At incorporation of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in EAS 49, This policy is applied
to contract entered since company incorporation or after.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

4-32-1 Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component. The
Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencemeit date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the undetlying
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is pericdically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date discounted vusing the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

- And the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured

when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a

change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,

if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment,

When the lease liability is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero. The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investiment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’
in the statement of financial position.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low — value
assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.32-2 As a lessor

At incorporation or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideraticn in the contract to each lease component based on their relative stand- alone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease incorporation whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is & finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life
of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessar, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-o fuse asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease compenents, then the Group applies EAS (48) to allocate
the consideration in the contract.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in EAS( 47) to the net investment
in the lease. The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in
calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other revenue,

5- Financial instruments risk management

The Group's financial instruments comprise of financial assets and liabilities. Financial assets
comprise of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — financial derivatives, debt
instruments represented in treasury bills, cash at banks, due from related parties, available for sale
investments, accounts receivable and other debit balances. The financial liabilities comprise of
borrowings, credit facilities, credit to customers, due to related parties and payables. Following are
the most significant risks, the Group companies are exposed to when conducting their business
activities, financial instruments used and strategies that the Group follows to manage those risks.

The Group is exposed to various financial risks resulted from its ordinary course of business. These
risks include market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group is especially exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. The
Group’s financial risk management function seeks to minimize the effects of these risks mainly
through operational and finance continuing activities. The management of the Group is responsible
for designing and monitoring the framework of the risk management function.
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Market risk

Foreign currency risk management related to operations

Each of the Group companies is conducting its operating activities using its functional currency.
Hence, some of companies of the Group are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations risk related to
payments, collections, or equity instruments vsing currencies other than functional currency. These
liabilities and equity instruments are usually related to capital expenditures with external suppliers
and revenues resulted from services rendered to external customers. The Group monitors the risk of
foreign currencies fluctuation risk resulted from its operating activities.

At year end, major net assets / (net liabilities) foreign currencies positions presented in Egyptian
pound (EGP), were as follows:

(In thousands of EGP) .' December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
USD l 667,041 75,170
Euro : 143,466 | 50,498
GBP : 8 270
Other T TS 14945

Management estimates that if any changes occurs either upward or downward in the exchange rate
of the Egyptian pound (functional currency) in the range of 10% against the US Dollar or Euro with
the stability of all other variables, the receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies
will be affected by increase or decrease equivalent to EGP 159 million (2021: EGP 14 Million)
which affecting the net (Joss) / profit for the year by the same amount,

Change in market price risks
This risk is considered limited as invested equity instruments exposed to this risk are not material
from management’s point of view,

Interest rate risk

Risk associated with interest rates for the Group is related to borrowings, where Group is exposed
to the risk of fluctuations in cash flows resulting from the change in market interest rates for loans
with variable interest rates, as the Group is exposed to the risk of change in fair value of loans with
fixed interest rates.

The Group did not enter into any derivative contracts to hedge the risks associated with possible
fluctuations in interest rates, whether to hedge the cash flows or fair value.

The Group monitors and analyses the interest rate risks on an on-going basis and calculates the
impact of movements in market interest rates on the income statement for each currency.

The following table shows the total cutstanding loans of the Group on the financial position date and
the proportion of each of the loans with fixed or variable interest rates, as well as those that were
obtained without interest to total outstanding loans:

{In thousands of EGP) ,Dece:mher 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

392,503 - 159,590
. %100 . %100

Total borrowings
‘!

of which % is at a variable interest rate

Management estimates the impact resulting from the change in the interest rate by 1%, leading to an
increase or decrease in the finance cost for the current pericd on December 2022 of EGP 2.8 Million
(2021: EGP 1.6 Million).
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group represents the inability of contractual parties to pay their debts, especially,
receivables, financial instruments, cash at banks and equivalent.

The credit risks which the Group is exposed to can be analysed for each segment, as follows:

Cash balances at banks

The credit risk associated with the balances of cash and cash equivalents risk is very limited as the
Group deals with banks with good reputation in the market.

In general, the receivables and financial receivables included in financial assets relate to a variety of
small amounts due from a wide range customer, which reduce the credit risk given to customers.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the factors which may affect the Group's ability to pay part or all of its
liabilities, management monitors these liabilities and in case these liabilities have been increased,
management depends on obtaining dividends from its subsidiaries or through management of excess
cash at subsidiaries to mitigate any increase in these liabilities above acceptable levels The Group
monitors and mitigates liquidity risk arising from the uncertainty of cash inflows and outflows by
maintaining sufficient liquidity of cash balances. In general, liquidity risk is monitored at entity level
whereby each subsidiary is responsible for managing and monitoring its cash flows and rolling
liquidity reserve forecast in order to ensure that it has sufficient committed facilities to meet its
liquidity needs and a ¢oordination with the management of the Group exist to manage surplus cash
balances, where the Group directs these surpluses to companies that have deficit in their liquidity, so
the Group depends mainly on internal transfers between Companies of the Group and on dividends
from subsidiaries.

Laws and regulations in certain countries, such as for example North Korea, in which the Group
operates limit the conversion of current cash balances into foreign currency. Given the nature of the
business, Group companies may have to make payments in foreign currencies (for example capital
expenditures), the lack of individual entity foreign currency reserves means that these companies are
largely dependent on the parent Company to make these payments on its behalf.

The below table analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity Groupings based on

the payment remaining period at the date of the consolidated financial statemenits:
..(n thousands of EGP)

; * Carryin, ted Lessthanl  Bet
| As of December 31, 2022 . Carrying m;i‘gfws il et
| Liahilities - .
Borrowings from banks : 392,503 797,944 53,307 744,637 -
" Creditors and other credit balances : 346,503 546,503 546,503 - -
L e 939,006 1344447 509810 744,637 -
(In thousands of EGP)
rryin n More than
As of December 31, 2021 (:::ngmtg cafl:‘?l?)cxz:i*} Les:'el:? " :::;V;E;ea:s ; years
Liabilities '
Borrowings from banks 159,590 229,054 16,983 212,971 -
Creditors and other credit balances 337,209 337,209 337,209 - -
496,799 567,163 354,192 212,971 -
* E?ected cash flows are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest, charges
and other fees,

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Management
currently depends mainly on various internal resources to finance its activities and capital
expenditures.

Political and economic risks in emerging countries

A significant amount of the Group’s operations is conducted in Egypt, North Korea and Pakistan.
The operations of the Group depend on the market economies of the countres in which the
27
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subsidiaries operate. In particular, these markets are characterised by economies that are in various
stages of development or are undergoing restructuring. Therefore, the operating results of the Group
are affected by the current and future economic and political developments in these countries. In
particular, the results of operations could be unfavourably affected by changes in the political or
governmental structures or weaknesses in the lpcal economies in the countries where it operates.
These changes could also have an unfavourable impact on financial position, performance and future
business prospects of the Group.

Regulatory risk in emerging countries

Due to the nature of the legal and tax jurisdictions in the emerging countries where the Group
operates, it is possible that laws and regulations could be amended. This could include factors such
as the current tendency to withholding tax on the dividends of these subsidiaries, receiving excessive
tax assessments, granting of relief to certain operations and practices relating to foreign currency
exchange. These factors could have an unfavourable effect on the financial activities of the Group
and on the ability to receive funds from the subsidiaries.

Revenue generated by the majority of the Group subsidiaries is expressed in local currency, the Group
expects to receive most of this revenue from its subsidiaries and therefore it relies on their ability to
be able to transfer funds.

The regulations in the various countries, such as for example North Korea, where the subsidiaries
operate could reduce the ability to pay interest and dividends and to repay loans, credit instrrments
and securities expressed in foreign currency through the transfer of currency. In addition, in some
countries it could be difficult to convert large amounts of foreign currency due to central bank
regulations. The central banks may amend regulations in the future and therefore the ability of the
Company to receive funds from its subsidiarics may be changed.

Classes of financial instrument

31 December 2622 : 31 December 2021

R I

ol ol o e

r

:  Financial Financial Financial Financial
(In thousands of EGP) ©  assefsat assets at assets at assets at

! amortized fair value amortized fair value

: Cost through PL Total Cost through PL. Total
Other financial assets J 91,571 _ 700,034 791,605 - 139,209 - 139,200
Trade receivables 72,739 -- 72,739 - 106,254 - 106,254
Other assels 72,282 - 72282 . 13,974 - 13,974
Cash and cash equivalents ; 1,699,753 - 1,699,753 1,112,630 - 1,112,630
Total ; 1,936,345 700,034 2,636,379 1,372,067 - 1,372,067

" 31 December2022 31 December 2021

: ' Other
(In thousands of EGP) | financial

i Financial Financial Financial liabilitles

: liabilitiesat  liabilities at liabilities at at

i through profit amortized - fair value amortized

or loss cost Total through PL cost Total
Borrowings - 392,503 302,503 - 159,590 155,590
Creditors and ather credit | . 546498 546,498 - 337,209 337,200
balances
Tatal - 939,001 939,001 - - 496,799 496,799
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6- Segment reporting

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the board of directors of the Company. The
board of directors reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess its performance and
allocate resources, mainly from a geographical perspective.

Pursuant to the decision to dispose of entities previously included in the Media and Technology
segment, OIH management has changed its internal reporting as analysed by the chief operating
decision-maker and revised the reportable operating segments as follows:

s Investment property: investment properties relate to real estate property the Group owns in Sao
Paola, Brazil.

¢ GSM — Lebanon: relating to the management contract of the Iebanese mobile telecommunications

— * p— F_

1

operator Alfa, which is owned by the Republic of Lebanon.

s Submarine cables: relating to the provision of direct broadband and high-speed connectivity to
telecom operators, internet service providers and major corporations through submarine fibre optic
cables. {included in discontinned operations during 2022).

e Others: Includes equity investment of the Group and income and expenses related to holding

company

« The Group reports on operating segments, which are independently managed. The chief operating
decision-maker assesses the performance of such operating segments based on:

¢ Total revenue and earnings before Interest, tax, depreciation and amortization,

e Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.
Revenue and EBITDA disclosure per segment
The following information is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and is measured
consistently with that of the financial staternents.

Continuing operations

: December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

: Revenue Revenue

! Inter from Inter from
(In thousands of | Operating  segment external Adjusted Operating segment  external Adjusted
EGP) revenue TeYEnue customers  EBITDA® . revenue revenue  cusiomers  EBITDA*
Entertainment ! 7518 - 97,518 46308 27,922 - 27022 (26,034)
QOthers i 16,300 (16,308) - 094,134 14,659 (14,659) - (70,927
Total ' 113,818 (16,300) 97,518 140,442 42,581 (14,659) 27922 (96,981)

Disconiinued operations
i December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Revenue Revenue

Inter from Inter from
(In thousands of : Operating  segment external Adjusted ~ Operating segment  external Adjusted
EGP) .__Trevenue revemnus customers _ EBITDA* revenue revenue customers  EBITDA®
Investment property - - - - 40,532 40,532 603,040
Cables : - - - - §24.824 - 824,824 378,352
others i - - - - - - 9491
Total | .= - - - 865,356 - 865,356 40,583

* Impairment of non-financial assets and gains on sale of non-financial assets are not considered in the
calculation of the adjusted EBITDA.
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

The following table illustrate the reconciliations on the Adjusted EBITDA. to reach the net profit

/(loss) before income tax for the year ended:

(in thousands of EGP) | December 31,2022 . December 31, 2021
Adjusted EBITDA 140,442 (96,981)
Adjustments: '.
Depreciation and amortization (11,122) : (5,300
Finance income i 2,006 2,906
Finance costs : (6,428) (13,066)
Net gains from foreign currencies translation 328,139 49,833
Share of profit of equity accounted investments 356,178 - 425,586
Net impairment in equity accounted investments i {396,178) . (425,586)
{Loss) for the year before income tax ' 453,037 : (62,608)
Assets per segment
The following table illustrates assets for each reportable segment as they are regularly provided to the
management.
; December3L 2022 December 31, 2021
(In :

thousands of :Property and Intangible Investment Equity

: Property and Intangible Investment  Equity

EGP) +_equipmen assels property  inetruments Total _ : cquipment  assets property instruments _ Total
Investment :

Property - - 202,032 - 202032 - 206,162 - 206,162
Eoterioment | 421,647 - - - 421647 179,545 - - - 179,545
aclivitics . :

Other : 38,507 - - 613,632 652,139 © 36071 - - 613,632 649,703
Toial . 460,154 - 202,032 613,632 1,275818 215,616 - 206,162 613,632 1,035,410

Capital expenditure

The table below illustrates the capital expenditure incurred by each segment for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and the year ended December 31, 2021:

(Xn thousands of EGP)
Submarine cables (discontinued operations)

Investment property
Entertainment activities
Total

30

The year ended The year ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
-- 493,778
- 206,162
251,507 117,642
251,507 817,582
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

7-  Assets and ligbilities held for sale and discontinued operations results
a-Assets and liabilities held for sale

On April 27, 2021, the Company’s board of directors appraved the sale of all the shares owned by the
Group in Trans World Associates, to Orastar Limited. It worth to be mentioned that the total value of
Trans World Associates regarding the deal is about USD 96 million.The ownership percentage of
Orascom Investment Holding in Trans World Associates (Private) is 51% from the company’s capital,
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities related to assets held for sale and the sale process has been
completed during 2022, The assets and liabilities held for sale are as follows:

Assets held for sale

(o thousands)

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

Inventory

Accounts receivables

Debtors and other debit balances

Cash and cash equivalent.

Total Assets held for sale

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Financial liabilities

QOther liabilities

Tax liabilities

Creditors and other credit balance

Received under the sale transaction of TWA*

Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale

* Liabilities related to assets held for sale represents amounts received under the sale of TWA equivalent
to USD 3 million and within Janvary 2022, the Company has completed the sale process, and the
procedures for transferring the ownership of the shares are being completed.

b-Discontinued operations results
The discontinued cperations represent the following: -

| Yearended Year ended
(In thousands of EGP) ! December 31, - December 31,

I 2022 : 2021
Gain on disposal of TWA (7-6-10) | 38,298 ; -
Net results of discontinued operations from the disposal of TWA (7-b-1) 21,378 ¢ --
Discontinued operations resulting from the disposal of TWA (7-b-2) | - 132,144
Discontinued operations resulting from disposals of floors in Brazil (7-b-3) | : 842,116
Net profit from discontinued operations ' 59,676 974,260
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

(7-b-1) Discontinued operations result from TWA:

During 2021 the Company has announced the sale of all shares of TWA, Orascom Investment Holding
owns 51% of total TWA and the sale transaction is completed on 21 January 2022 and the share of
Orascom Investment Holding amounted about USD 35.5 million and the shares ownership has been
transferred on that date mentioned above.

The following is TWA' profits during the financial year

Year ended : Year ended

ending :(In thonsands of EGF) . December31,2022 = December 31, 2021
Sale value of Company in Trans World Associate received in i : -
2022 509,791

Advanced payment of sale value paid in 2021 ; 46,964 uu
Tatal amount received 556,755 --
Carrying amount of assets sold (701,415) : -
Disposal of carrying amount to NCI (43,339) . -
Company shares in TWA profit before tax 1 149874 -
Income Tax (111,576) -
Group net profit from the disposal 38,298 -

it is worth to be mentioned that sale amount may change in the future as the contract states that the final
value of the sale will be edited based on the amount of sale that will be calculated based on financial
statement of TWA on the sale date as it is being prepared in the present time.

(In thousands of EGP) ‘December31,  December
_ 2022 31, 2021

Operating revenue : 56,836 824,824
Operating cost ': (30,772) . (640,320)
Profit for the year before tax 26,064 184,504
Incorme Tax '; (4,686) (52,360)
Net profit for the year 5 21,378 132,144
(7-b-2) Trans World Associates e

{In thousands of EGP) December 31, December

2022 31, 2021

Operating revenne - 824,824
Purchases and services costs - (292,197}
Personnel costs 5 . (130,442)
Depreciation and amortization ; - (127,968)
Gains from disposal of non-current assets - 2,045
Other expenses — (25,878)
Net finance cost I - (65,880)
Profit for the year before tax - 184,504
Income tax - (52,360)
Net profit for the year - 132,144

(7-b-3) Discontinued operations result from Disposal of investment properties in Brazil:

In October 2021, Orascom Investment Holding sold the floors in Brazil owned by the Company through
its subsidiary Victoire Holding B.V., against a total consideration of for USD 76.5 million (equivalent to
approximately EGP 1.2 billion). The contract stipulates that Orascom Investment Holding will guarantee
for the buyer to obtain a fixed annual retwn for a period of 24 months from the date of the sale of the
above-mentioned floors, with a total amount of EGP 13.262 thousand, whereby Orascom Investment
Holding will transfer the difference of the return to the buyer in the event that the fixed return stipulated
in the contract is not reached, OIH has agreed with the seller to open an escrow account for the full
amount previously mentioned. The sale contract also stipulates a guarantee for the payment of any
amounts resulting from cases brought due to real estate taxes on floors, which are estimated at a total
value of EGP 7,460 thousand, the Cormpany's lawyer believes that there is no need to make a provision,
as the Company's position is strong, and therefore the Company has not formed any provisions for the
mentioned amount.
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QOrascom Investment Holding S.A.E.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

The following is the Company's share of the net profit related to the sale of floors in Brazil for the

year ended:

{In thousands of EGP)

Operating revenues

Purchase and service costs
Depreciation

Guain on sale of investment property*
Provisions

Other Income

Other operating expenses

Net financing income

Profit for the year before tax

Income tax
Profit for the year

2022

. December 31,

December 31,
2021

40,532

(11,621)
842,116
(3,151)
4,337
(44,233)
&8

888,769
(46,653}

842,116

* Profits from the sale of investment properties presented in the following for thecal year ended:

(In thousands of EGP)

Total collected from the sale of investment property

Deduct: Book value of investment property
Disposal of accumulated to OCI

Gain on sale of investment property

Operating revenues
{In thousands of EGP)

Revenues from entertainment activities
Total

Purchases and services cost
(In thousands of EGP)

Consulting and professional services
Advertising and promotional services
Maintenance costs

Bank charges

Site costs

Purchases of goods and changes in inventories

Insurance expenses

Rent expenses

Travel and accommodation expenses
Equipment technology supplies expenses
Utilities and energy costs

Other service expenses

Total

| December31,2022  December 31,2021

- 1,240,850

- {695,996)

- 297,262

- 842,116

" For the yearended °  For the year ended
. December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

f 97,318 : 27,922

| 97,518 | 27.922
| For the year ended For the year ended
._December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
81,864 - 29,675

: 11,034 - 7,157

2.556 . 2,766

3,520 ¢ -

3,774 -

493 12,163

559 . 528

834 2,042

1,251 43

872 -

1,002 _ 1,240

14,606 21,645

122 365 77,259
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Orascom Invesiment Holding S.A.E.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Other expenses

{In thousands of EGP)

Tax expensés
Other operating expenses
Total

Personnel costs
(In thousands of EGP)

Wages and salaries
Bonuses

Other benefits
Pension costs

End of service

Subscriptions
Other personnel costs

Total

Depreciation

{In thousands of EGP)

Depreciation of fixed assets
Buildings

Computers and other equipment
Depreciation of investment property
Buildings

Total

Net financing inconie
(In thousands of EGP)

Finance income generated from:

Interest income

Total financial income

Finance cost generated from:

Interest Expense

Total finance cost

Net foreign currencies translation gains
Total foreign currencies translation Gain
Net financing income

34

P For the year

{  For ke year ended

i ended December December 31,

f 31,2022 2021

3; 2476 -

9,558 11,483

: 12,031 11,483

' For the year

i Forthe year ended

! ended December December 31,

31, 2022 ; 2021

94,132 88,099

8,307 8,207

1,208 - 1,030

3 5,765 4,190

i - 2,773

104 -~

196 954

i 109,802 105,253
""" For the year

:  For the year ended

! ended December December 31,

31, 2022 2021

2,453 2,449

4,539 2,507

" 4,130 344

11,122 5,300

' For the year

! ended December - For the year ended

| 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

? 2,006 2,906

E 2,006 2,906

(6.428) (13.066)

(6,428) {13,066)

i 328,139 49,833

.! 328,139 49,833

i 323,717 39,673
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

14- Equity-accounted investees

|0wnersh1p R T~

Country | percentage Dece;nﬂﬂ;;r A, ' percentage % De;i‘;:;;;
(In thousands of EGP) i % in 2022 ; in 2021 !
Cheo  Technology-  Norhem | o, 13,294,525 75 12,898,346
Koryolink Korea : ;
Less: Impairment in | {12,680,893) (12,284,714)
investments ;

L 613632 613,632

- Koryolink Company

The Group's investments in Republic of North Korea related primarily to the 75% voting rights in the
local telecom operator Koryolink. The accounting treatment has been modified during period ended
September 30, 2015. Through, recognizing it as an investment in an associate instead of investment in
subsidiaries, as the Group management believes that the existence of significant influence instead of
control. Thus, in light of the increase of the restrictions, financial and operating difficulties facing
Koryolink due to the international sanction imposed by the international community including the United
States of America, the European Union and the United Nations. These sanctions have the effect of
restricting financial transactions and the import and export of goods and services, including goods and
services required to operate, maintain and develep mobile networks, In addition to the restrictions
imposed on the associate that affect the ability of the associate company to transfer profits to the parent
(return of funds to its native) and the absence of a free-floating cumrency exchange market in Republic of
North Korea, announced by the Central Bank of Republic of North Korea, other than launching a
competing local telecom operator wholly owned by the North Korean Government.

On September 11, 2017, the United Nations Security Council issued a resolution obliging member state
of the United Nations to pass laws prohibiting joint ventures and existing partnerships with North Korea
unless approval is obtained to continue such joint ventures.

At the present, the Group’s management submitted an official request through the Government of the
Arab Republic of Egypt in order to be excluded from adhering to the said resolution.

On December 26, 2018, the request to the Security Council Committee established to follow up the
implementation of sanctions on Republic of North Korea was approved, with the exception of Koryolink,
to ban foreign investment in North Korea and to allow Orascom Investment Holding to continue its
activities in Republic of North Korea and consider the associate as a telecommunications infrastructure
company offering a public service.

The following table presents the movement on the investment of Koryolink Company during the year
ended:

r— - r

-

[ 1

(In thousands of EGP) ?mﬁéééﬁfl:'ei' 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Total assets 0,154,900 14,003,514
Total liabilities f (923,919) . (1,532,177)
Net assets 8,230,981 . 12,471,337

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Total revenues 1,472,938 5,873,884
Total expenses : (B86,007) . {5,306,436)
Net profit after tax : 586,931 567,448
Share of profit of the associate company 396,178 . 425,586
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

"December 31,2022 . December 31, 2021
Opening balance of the investment in the associate i 12,898,346 ; 12,472,760
Group's share of profit of the associate company | 396,178 : 435,586
Ending balance ; 13,294,524 ; 12,898,346
Opening balance of impairment : (12,284,714) : (11,859,128)
Impairment of Group’s share of profit of the associate i (396,178) . (425,586)
Ending balance of impairment {12,680,892) : (12,284,714)

' 613,632 : 613,632

*During the third quarter of 2022, (Koryolink to announced capital increase about EUR 20 million and KPTC
company (North Korean Postal) shareholder in Koryolink with 25% ownership percentage, has subscribed in
all shares of capital increase resulting in decreasing of Orascom Investment holding ownership percentage
from 75% to 60% to change the capital structure to the following:

(bS:ol;tz:m . Owmershlp oo ol (atter the ,?Si’ffé‘;'i
Description increase) | percentage increase) :
Amougltjig % Amount in EUR %o
Orascom Investment Holding 60,000,000 ; 75% 60,000,000 60%
North Korea Postal Company KPTC 20,000,00 25% 40,000,000 . 40%
Toral 80000000,  100% 100,000,000 100%

Income and loss, resulting from decreasing ownership percentage in Koryolink are calculated that is result of
the profit realised with amount of EGP 104 million. Considering, circumstance of investment in Koryolink
and international penalties imposed by the international community on Republic of North Korea , the Group
didn't record profit resulting from decreasing ownership percentage in Koryolink and the cost of investment
hasn’t been changed .

Fixed assets
Computers,
Land and fixtures and Assets under
(In theusands of EGF) Buildinps other Construction Total
equipment
Cost 52,520 22,679 160,821 236,020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (10,777) (9,628) - (20,405)
Net book value as of January 1, 2022 41,743 13,051 160,821 215,615
Additions 149,696 25,964 75,848 251,508
Disposals - - - -
Depreciation (2.453) (4,539) - (6,992)
Reclassification (15) 15 - -
Foreign currencies translation differences - 23 -- 23
Net book value as of December 31, 2022 188,971 34,514 236,669 460,154
Cost 202,218 47,190 236,671 486,079
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 3246y (2679 - (25925)
36
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Land Cable C""ﬁ“;l:::::s ‘:rslf;t:
7 =
{In thonsands of EGP) Bu;?i]n ] sysl::mma::tl and other  Construc Right of Total
g5 equp equipment tion use
Cost 64,233 945,670 180,192 126,924 - 1,317,019
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {15319 (264,567 (71,668) - -« (351,554)
Net book value as of Janvary 1, 2021 48,914 681,103 108,524 126,924 -- 965,465
Impact of EAS 49 - - -~ - 80,626 80,626
Addidons 543 42,878 73,316 176,366 00,967 354,069
Disposals - (602) (1,740) -- (5.370) 7.712)
Depreciation (2,449 - (250N - - #.956)
Depreciation represented in discontinued
operation {673) (46,065) {28,229) - {49472) (124439)
Reclassification 10 assets held for sales {6,458) (658,074) (174,937) (54,341)  (89,015) (982,825)
Reclassifications - - 38,233 (38,233) - -
Foreign currencies translation differences 1,866 (19,2400 392 (49,895) 2264 (64,613)
Net book value as of December 31, 2021 41,743 - 13,051 160,821 - 215,615
Cost 52,520 -- 22,680 160,821 236,020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 10,777) - (9,628) - (20,405)
16- Intangible assets
{In thousands of EGP) License Goodwill Rightof use ‘Trademark Other Total .
Cost . 36,143 15,17 25912 - 970 78,102
Accumulated amortization and impairment : (29,545) {8,098) (3,078) - - (40,721)
Net book value as of January 1, 2021 . 6,598 6,919 22,894 - 970 37,381
Additions 1,850 - 8,688 - - 10,538
Amortization - - - - - -
Amortization (in discontinued operations) {1,892) - {1,842) - - (3,739
Reclassifications for assets held for sales (5,545} (6,275) (27.097) - (554) (39,871) .
Foreign currencies translation differences {611) (644) (2,643) - 416) (4,314)

Net book value as of December 31, 2021

Cost ;
Accumulated amortization and impairment

-

The balance of intangible assets includes goodwill resulted from the Group acquisitions during the year

and prior years as the follows:

(In thousands of EGP)

Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment
Assets held for sale

Change in scope of consolidation splitting
effect

Change in scope of consolidation

Foreign currency translation differences
Net book value on 31 December 2022
Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment

December 31,2023

_ December 31, 2021
: Fm;f" Cables Otbers  Total - F:‘E‘::i?' Cables Others  ‘Total
- — 8,098 8,008 8,008 8,098
- — (8,098) (8,098) — (8.098) (8,098
- - 8098 8098 —- 8098 8,098
L= o= (8,098)  (3.098), - (8,098) (8,098)
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Other financial assets e e e e e e o e
(In thousands of EGP) ; December 31, 2022 : December 31, 2021
i Non-
| _Neon-current Current Total ._current __Current __ Total
g‘;r;?nmal receivables at amortized _ 113,600 113,600 : B 86,100 86,100
Non current restricted cash (18-1) | 2,238,002 - 2,238,002 53,109 - 53,109
Bomowing from Koryolink* . (2,146,688) - (2,146,688) | -- - -
Total financial investment at 91,314 113,600 204,914 : 53,109 86,100 139,209
amortized cost : .
Other financial assets ' 257 - 257 - - -
Financial investment at fair value ; :
through profit or loss — (Vortex : 700,034 - 700,034 : - - -
fund) (18-2) i :
Total Fi ial i i :
0 nancial investment at : 791,605 113,600 905,205 53,109 $6,100 139,200

amortized cost

*During August 2022, Koryolink Company took a decision based on a shareholder’s request in Koryolink

company, the decision give all shareholders without distinguish free interest loan according to rules and
procedures specific to local law. Loan transferred amounted to EUR 81.7 million (equivalent to EGP
1.55 billion) to Orascom Investment Holding account in Republic of North Korea knowing that all local
policies and laws related specified to bank transfers and transactions of the amounts mentioned. Orascom
Investment Holding will continue to comply with international decision specified to international
penalties related to this matter. The loan is free interest for 5 years can be increased automatically to a
period or to periods or other periods each one is 3 years. There will be an agreement between Koryolink
about the settlement either in cash or by offsetting intercompany balances.

18-1- Pledged deposit and restricted cash at amortized cost

(T thousands of EGP) ! December 31,2022 ' December 31, 2021
I Non-current  Current Total CLIIT'(;:nt Current Taotal
Pledged deposit - - - 3,150 - 3,150
Cash at bank in North Korea S - 142782 99,913 - 99913
Impairment in financial assets (51.468) -~ (51468) (49954 - (49,954)
' 91,314 - 91,314 - 53,109 - 53,109

18-2- Financial Investment at fair value through Profit or loss- Lighthouse energy SCSP

During 2022 the Company invested in investment fund which operates in renewable energy industry.
The share of the group in the fair value of investment amounted to EUR 26.6 million equivalent to USD
28.3 million. This investment classified in the fund as of December 31,2022 as financial investment at
fair value through profit or loss and its fair value classified based on level 3 investments (levels of fair
value revaluation) as there are inputs nsed that are not observed for assets and liabilities. There is no
transfers between the levels for the year from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022, the investments in
the fund assessed from the third level using unadjusted inputs provided by the fund management based
on the team's internal assumptions for the investment's business plan. As the result of management
evaluation represents the median valuation between Deloitte's minimum and maximurn valuation ranges.

The following table shows fair value adjustment for the investment classified within the third level
during the year.

31 December 2022 EGP
Cost of the purchase 560 890
Effect of the Fair value 139 144
Balance in 31 December 2022 700 034
39
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Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

19- Income tax

: Financial year
{In thousands of EGP) i Financial year ended ° ended December 31,
i  December 31, 2022 - 2021
Current tax expense ; (18,421) - 2,771
Deferred tax 103,085 : 47,652
Total Income Tax 84,664 50,423

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to the Group to
offset current tax assets and liabilities, and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities are settled
with the same tax authority in the country, and when the Group has the intention to settle the net of
these balances or to redeem these tax assets and settle these tax liabilities at the same time.

The following table shows the most important deferred tax liabilities as presented in the consclidated

financial statements of the Group:

(In thousands of EGP) 2022 : 2021
Balance as of January 1 ,2022 (75,382) (118,284)
Foreign currency translation differences (559) 12,707
Charged to the statement of income during the year (103,085) : (47,652)
Charged to the statement of income (in discontinued _ 4.452
operations) »
Charged to the assets held for sale - 73,395
Balance as of December 31, 2022 (179,026) . (75.382)
The following table includes the nature of items comprising the deferred tax liabilities:
: December 31, 2022 Deceraber 31, 2021
Deferred tax ; Depreciation 4, oltted ?izﬁrjﬁlda Unremitted ather
liabilities amo::lfu o carnings Forix, ather Toisl nmtg:_lim earnings Forex Total
- n

(In thousands of

EGP) :

Opening balance - (3,768) (13,914) (6,814} {45,886) (75.382) (93,383) (18,112) (6,814) 25 (118,284)

Chargedtothe

income statement (9.369) 4,357 (72,763)  {25,310) (103,085) ~ (1,815) (B02) (45,035) (47,652)

for the year :

Charged 10 the

income statement | _

for the year (in : - - - - - - (3,140) - 7.592 4,452

discontinued

operations)

Charged to the

assets held for - - - - - 80,346 - - {6,951) 73,395

sale '

Currency !

translation f - - - {559) (559) 14,224 - - (1,517) 12,707

differences ' .

Ending balance | {13,137)  (14.557) (79.577) (71,755) (179,026) (3,768)  (18914)  (6,814) (45886)  (75,382)
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Trade receivables
{In thousands of EGP)

Debit balance-subscribers

Receivables from Koryolink dividends
Other debit balances

Expected credit losses

Total

Movement of expected credit loss is represented as follows:

(In thousands of EGP)

Beginning balance

Foreign currency translation differences

Additions (recognized 2s an expense during the year)
Expected credit loss for the year (discontinued operations)
Provisicn used during the year

Transferred to assets held for sale

Ending balance

i December 31, December 31,
: 2022 2021
421,254 | 290,792
| 375,268 372,295
26,263 18,196
| (750,046) (575,029)
72,739 106,254
" December3l, December 31,
' 2022 2021
575,029 557,467
104,174 3,795
70,843 4,684
- 9,233

- 9,516

- (9,666)

750,046 575,029

The following table shows the aging analysis of trade receivables as of December 31, 2022, and 2021, net
of the relevant allowance for doubtful debts:

| December 31, December 31,

{In thousands of EGP} 2022 2021
Not past doe 5,735 . 13,668
Past due 0-30 days ! - 8139
Past due 31-120 days - -
Past due 121 - 150 days I - -
Past due more than 150 days i 67,004 - 91,747
Total trade receivables : 72,739 - 106,254

21- Other assets e

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2022 . December 31, 2021
¢ Non-current  Current Total Non-current  Current Total
Prepaid expenses : - 5,117 5117 - 2,257 2,257
Advances to suppliers - 4,106 4,106 - 7,329 7,329
Receivables due from ’
tax authority ' - 2,267 2,267 . - 1,418 1,418
Income tax paid in :
advance - 1,097 1,097 6,424 6,424
Other receivables 4,000 665,260 70,260 4,000 17,193 21,193
Expected credit loss (4.000) (6,565) {10,565) - (6,007) (6,097)
Total i - 72,282 72,282 ° 4,000 28,524 32,524
41
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

22- Cash and cash equivalents

(In thousands of EGP) " December31,2022  December 31,2021

Banks- current accounts and deposits * . 1,700,295 - 1,112,315
Cash on hand 472 315
Total | 1,700,767 : 1,112,630
Impairment of cash and cash equivalents | (1,014 .
Total Cash and cash equivalents i 1,699,753 1,112,630

* Banks current accounts as of December 31, 2022, inc]lude an amount of EGP 28.8 million (equivalent
to USD 1.2 million) which represents restricted amounts in Lebanon according te the restrictions of the
government over the local banks which related to transfers of funds abroad.

23- Issued and paid-up capital
As of December 31, 2022, the authorized capital is amounted to EGP 2,885 billion and the issued capital

became EGP $77,025,968 consisting of 5,245,690,620 shares with a nominal value of EGP 0.11 per share,
The authorized, issued and paid capital after split was noted in the Company’s commercial registry on
December 10, 2020.

The following table shows the major shareholders of the company as of December 31, 2022:

Shareholders * Ordinary shares with voting Ordinary shares with
; rights vating rights percentage
Bank of New York Mellon 2,846,499,353 %54.26
Others 2,399,191,267 %4574
Total available ordinary shares : 5,245,690,620 %100

24- Un-distributable earnings
Retained earnings include an amount of EGP 54 million as of December 31, 2022 (comparing to EGP 39
million as of December 31, 2021), which is not available for distribution, representing a legal and special
reserves at the subsidiaries level.

25- Borrowings

(In thousands of EGP) | December31,2022 December 31, 2021
i Non- :
Current current Total °  Current _ Non-current Total

Borrowings from banks

47,090 323,741 370,831 280 159,310 159,590

Liability from sale and | 2,043 19,629 21,672 _ B B
lease back i :
Total i 49,133 343,370 392,503 280 139,310 159,590

The following table shows the ageing analysis of borrowings:

within after 5
(In thousands of EGP) oneyear 1-2years 2-3 vears 34 years 4-5 years years Total
December 31, 2022 N RO
Borrowings from banks | 47,090 25,638 30,869 52,629 63,064 151,542 370,832
Liability from sale and : 2,043 2,528 3,155 3,922 4,876 5,147 21,671
lease back : :
As of December 31,2022 | 49,133 28,166 34,024 56,551 67,940 156,689 392,503
December 31, 2021 .
Borrowings from banks 280 26,552 26,552 26,552 26,552 53,102 159,590
As of December 31, 2021 280 26,552 26,552 26,552 26,552 53,102 159,590

The loan currencies represent as follows:

{In _lll_l_guws__al_]gg_ of EGP) o Ush Euro EGP Total
. Ag of December 31,2022 - - 392,503 392,503
As of December 31, 2021 - - 159,590 159,590
42



1

1

|

LR A R A R |

,..._|._.

F 1 o

r

r-

. r

Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Current borrowing — Local bank (QOrascom Investment Holding)

A credit facility contract in the form of a medium-term loan to finance the purchase of assets related to
the company was signed with an Egyptian bank on July 27, 2015, according to which a facility of EGP 5
million is available for a period of sixty-seven months ending on February 27, 2021.

On August 9, 2015, an addendum to the previously mentioned financing contract was signed with an
increase of EGP 600,000.

Withdrawal period: It is scheduled for six months starting from the date of signing this contract and ending
on January 23, 2016.

Repayment period: the company is obligated to pay ta the bank’s order each sub-loan to be used within
the limits of the credit facility amount in sixty monthly instalments with equal value.

Interest and payment perieds: A return of 2% per annum above the rate of return established on the
certificates with the bank, and the return is due to be paid every month, so that the applicable return in any
case during the term of this contract and until it is fully paid out of the original returns commissions and
expenses is not less than 12% .

On January 27, 2016, a credit facility contract was signed in the form of a medium-term loan to finance
the purchase of assets related to the company with an Egyptian bank, according to which a facility of EGP
2 million is provided for a period of sixty-seven months ending on August 26, 2021.

Withdrawal period. It is scheduled for six months starting from the date of gigning this contract and ending
on July 27, 2016.

Repayment period: the company is obligated to pay o the bank’s order each sub-loan to be used within
the limits of the credit facility amount in sixty monthly instalments of equal value.

On July 21, 2016, an addendum to the previously mentioned financing contract was signed with an
increase of EGF 3 million.

Withdrawal period: The withdrawal period for the previously mentioned loan has been extended for
another six months to end on January 26, 2017 instead of July 27, 2016.

Interest and payment periods: A return of 1.5% per annum above the rate of return established on the
certificates with the bank, and the return is due to be paid every month, so that the applicable return in
any case during the term of this contract and until it is fully paid out of the origin returns commissions
and expenses is not less than 11%.

Non-current borrowing

On September 30, 2020, a long-term loan contract was signed between the Bank of the Arab International
Banking company and Orascom Pyramids for Entertainment Projects S.A.E., provided that the Bank of
the Arab International Banking Company grants the company financing in the form of a long-term loan
amounting to EGP 230 million. This is for the purpose of contributing to the financing of the remaining
part of the investment costs of the project to develop and provide services in the visit area of the Giza
Pyramids and the adjacent and associated areas according to the usufruct licensing contract dated
December 13, 2018, concluded between the Supreme Council of Antiquities and Orascom Investment
Holding Company, as follows:

- An amount of EGP 80 million for the civil works for the restaurant complex and the connection of
utilities.

- An amount of EGP 52 million for the infrastructure works for the information network information
systems and the accounting system for the project.

- An amount of EGP 90 million for the civil works, renovations and improvements to the visitors’ building,
the VIP building “the current student building”, the site of the visit, the organization of the area for the
stables “horses - camels - karts” and for the electric vans, the charging station and its maintenance,

- An amount of EGP § million for the field work of The Nile Pyramids Lounge.

- The company is obligated to disburse according to the above items only with the same values, except for
the items of civil works, the company is allowed to increase them by 10% as a discount on the surpliuses
of other exchange items, provided that the user of all iterns does not exceed the total value of the loan.

- On April 7, 2022, a long-term loan agreement was signed between the Bank of the International Arab
Banking Company and Orascom Pyramids for Entertainment Projects (S.A.E), provided that the Bank
of the International Arab Banking Company will grant the company financing in the form of a long-
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

term loan amounted to EGP 130,000,000, in order to finance the remaining part of the investment costs
of the project for each of the works of (restaurants complex and the works of visiting areas (the phase
financed by the bank) according to the following portions:

The first portion: an amount of EGP 20 000 000 to complete the works of the restaurants complex.
The second portion: an amount of EGP 110 000 000 to complete the work of the visiting area.
Finance Lease Contracts Liabilities:

The Group entered into finance lease transactions during the year 2022 in order to rent 6 electric buses
and 2 charging stations, and the rental value is paid in quarterly instalments for a period of 27 instalments,
while giving the company the right to own these buses and charging stations at the end of the contract
period, and the payment of instalments ends on 30/7/2028, for a specific value.

Non-current financing

During 2021, the Group signed a financing contract worth EGP 251 million from the National Bank to
finance 72.5% of the capital costs related tc the sound and light development project in pyramids area.
The term of the contract is 9 years, starting from July 27, 2021, and ending on July 26, 2030, and the
interest rate is calculated at 1% above the annual corridor rate. It should be noted that the Group has not
withdrawn any funds from the financing until December 31, 2022,

- The following table shows the movement of borrowings during the year:

" December 31,2022
(In thousands of EGP) Borrowing from - Financing Total
banks lease
Opening balance l 159,590 - 159,590
Current borrowing : 280 -- 230
Non-current borrowing : 159,310 . - 159,310
Repayment of borrowings and interest : {280y - - (280)
Proceeds from bhorrowings : 180,534 21,672 202,206
Payment of finance cost i 547 . - 547
Intertest Transferred to fixed assets ! 30,440 - 30,440
Ending balance : 370,831 21,672 392,503
Current borrowings : 47,000 2,043 49,133
Non-current borrowings ' _ 323741 19,629 343,370
S e i, 021

(In thousands of EGP) __Borrowing from banks | Financing lease Total
Opening balance : 5101 - 537,101
Cusrent borrowing 160,734 - 160,734
Non-current borrowing : 376,367 -- 376,367
Impact of EAS 49 : 83,036 . - 83,036
Repayment of borrowings and interest : (94,859 - (94,359
Proceeds from borrowings . 108,897 . - 108,897
Repayment of borrowings (discontinued operations) (196,787) . -- (196,787)
Proceeds of borrowings (discontinued operations) 38,520 - 38,520
Transferred to Liabilities held for sale : (357,566) . -- (357,566)
Foreign enrrency translation differences : 41,248 . - 41,248
Ending balance : 159,500 -- 159,590
Current borrowings ) 280 -- 280
Non-current borrowings S 159310 - 158,310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

26- Other liabilities

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
* Non-current Current Total Non-current  Current Total

Capital expenditure payables :
Trade payables * - 204,112 204,112 . -- 172,658 172,658
Customers credit balances - 3,600 3,600 - -- 7414 7414
Other trade payables - 9,804 9,394 - -- 1,900 1,900

- 217,606 217,606 . -- 181,972 181,972
Accrued and deferred revenue - 3,390 3,390 . -- 58 58
Due to government bodies - 81 81 -- e 277
Accrued employee expenses - 19,556 19,556 - 45,808 45,808
Customer deposits - 426 426 - 354 354
Other credit balances ** - 312,429 312,429 -- 167.341 167,341

- 335,882 335,822 - -- 213,838 213,838
Total - 553,488 553,438 . -- 395810 395810

{*) This balance includes balances of related parties (refer to note no. 30 for information about the significant
transactions with related parties and the balances resulted from these transactions on the date of financial

statements)

(**) Current other credit balance includes employee benefits in Orascom Telecom Lebanon company with an
amount of EGP 23.8 million as of December 31, 2022 (EGP 15.2 million as of December 31, 2021).

27- Provisions

Noonger Formet trom R
. (In thousands of EGP) Janeary 1 & Formed  disconfinmed Used oy December 31
: required o tions translation
’ pera differences
~ Year 2022
. Provision for claims
(current portion) 435,571 (225,197) 25,131 - (34,392) 23,790 224,903
" Total provision as of
" December 31, 2022 435,571 (225,197) 25,131 - {34,302) 23,790 224,903
Year 2021
Provision for claims 373,995 - 37,390 25338 {1,481) 329 435,571
{current portion}
Total provision as of 373,995 - 37,390 23338  (1,481) 329 435,571
December 31, 2021

Provisions are related to expected claims resulting from the Group companies’ ordinary course of business.
The required information about these provisions were not disclosed, according to the Egyptian Accounting
Standards, because the management of the Group believes that doing so, will strongly affect the final
settlement of these provisions for clairs.

28- Earnin sses) per share

Basic earnings /(losses) per share is calculated by dividing the net (loss) / profit attributable to shareholders
of the Parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continning operation (in thousands of

EGH)

Weighted average number of shares {in thousands)

Profit /(Losses) per share (in EGP)

Net profit from discontinued operations {in thousands of EGP)
Weighted average number of shares (in thousands)

Earnings per share (in EGP)
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i The year ended The year ended
i December 31,2022 - December 31, 2021
368,423 (113,031)
5,245,691 : 5,245,691
0.070 . (0.022)

: - The_year ended . The year ended
" December 31, 2022 ° December 31, 2021
! 49,201 ° 908,243
: 5,245,691 . 5,245,691
0.009 - 0.173
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Orascom Investment Holding S.AE.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

29- Capital Commitments

The capital commitment represents the following:

Commitments related to fixed assets

Other commitments
Total

30- Related parties

" December 31,2022  December 31, 2021

: 112,724 - 67,378
22,629 - 28,005
135,353 95,383

The following table provides the total amount of significant transactions that have been entered with
related parties together with balances outstanding as of the relevant years of the financial statements:

{In thousands of EGP}

Associate
Koryolink

{In thousands of EGP}

Other related parties
Orastar LTD

Dr.Cmar Zawawy (shareholder of a subsidiary}

Koryolink*

,.  December 31, 2022 _ December 31, 2021

{ Purchase * Purchase

i Selling

\ of go0ds Investmen o? Selling Investme

i services services  goods and nt

! and i expenses - .

i and services and services expenses

i _goods goods

L e 2. - e -
" December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Receivables Payables Receivables Payables

326 326 -

_ (326) (326) -

oL 1e2662 - 154,840

The Group has due balances from Cheo Technology JYoint Venture Company “Koryolink” - a subsidiary
company- amounting to EGP 283,967 thousand as of December 31, 2022 (EGP 280.994thousand as of
December 31, 2021), for which impairment losses were fully formed, and the group did not perform
between the debit balances against the credit balances related to Koryolink since the Group does not have
a legal right of set-off, nor does it intend to settle the amounts recognized on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability at the same time.

Key management compensation

(In thousand EGP)

Board of directors’ allowances

31- Contingent liabilities

. Thé yearended o The year ended

Deécember 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
6,521 . 25,326
6,521 25,326

Contingent liabilities are represented in guarantees issued by the holding company and related to the

activities of its subsidiaries, as follows:

Orascom Pyramids for Entertainment Projects

- There are letters of guarantee amounting to EGP 20 million in favor of the SAIB.

Orascom Investment Holding Company
- There are letters of credit amounting to EGP 63,7million in favor of the National Bank of Egypt
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Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31,2022

32- Other income

EGP | December31,2022 . December 31, 2021
Other income 43,303 - 200,742
Total 43,303 . 200,742

Other income includes an amount of EGP 200.1 million during 2021, which represents the value of assets
received from Blue Stone company, refer to note no. (17).

33- Restatement on comparative figures
The following table sumumarizes the restatement made to the consolidated statement of income for the year
ended on December 31, 2021, to be in conformity with the presentation of the current financial statements
related to discontinued operations after the Demerger and sale of real estate investment in Brazil and
reclassification of Trans World Associates Limited to assets and liabilities held for sale, as follows:

(In thousands of EGP) December 31, 2021 December 31, 2021
As issued restatement Represented
Continuing operations
Operating revenues 27,922 -- 27,922
Other income 200,742 - 200,742
Purchases and services costs (75,088) 2,171) {71,255}
Other expenses (9,369) 2.114) {11,483)
Provisions formed (37,350) {(25,338) (62,728)
Personnel costs {20,618} {14.635) (105,253)
Deprecigiion and amortization (5,300} - {5,300)
Impairment of non-current assets (55,940) (12,982} (68,922)
Operating (losses) (45,041) (57,240) (102,281)
Finance income 2,906 - 2,906
Finance cost (13,066 - (13,066
Foreign currencies translation (loss) 16,467 33,366 49,833
Share of profit of equity accounted investees 425,586 -- 425,586
Net impairment in equity accounted investees (423,586) - {425,586)
{Loss) for the year before income tax (38,734) (23,874) {62,608)
Income tax (47,652) (2,771) (50,423)
(Loss) for the year from continuing operation (86,386) (26,645) (113,031)
Discontinued operations
Operation results from discontinued operations after tax 650,353 323,907 974,260
(Loss) for the year 563,967 297,262 861,229

34- Subsequent events
During March 2023, Orascom Investment Holding announced the sale of parent company’s headquarter with

puzpose of lease back to GB for finance lease with amount of EGP 157 million for 5 years on March 15, 2023,
and it will end on March 15, 2027.
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Orascom Investment Holding 8.A.E.,
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

35- New issuance and amendment of Egvptian accounting standards
On 6 March 2023, The decision no (883) for year 2023 for accounting standards amendment and the

summary for the significant amendment as the following:

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No (49)” Leasing
Contract”

2-In line with Egyptian accounting standard no (35)

amended 2023" agriculture”
paragraph are amended
(3),(6),(37) in the Egyptian accounting Standard
no{10)” fixed assets and its depreciation” as
there are paragraph added to the same standard
22(A),80(G),80(D) related to bearer plant
-The company is not obligated to disclose the
information about the quantity required
according to paragraph 28(w)
In Egyptian accounting standard no (5), it is the
first period financial statement in which
Egyptian Accounting standard no (35) amended
2023 and Egyptian Accounting standard no 10
applied but it should disclose the information
about the quantity required according to
paragraph 28 (w) in Egyptian accounting
standard for each previous period shown,
-the company may measure one of bearer plant
accounts at fair value in the beginning The
earliest period shown in the financial statement
for period in which the company applied for the
first time amendment mentioned above and
use this fair value as its hypothetical cost on
that date .
Any difference between previous book value and
fair value of the opening balance should be
added to revaluation surplus by side the equity in
the beginning of The earliest period shown

statement in
the case of use
this option

Currently the
management
evaluates the
potential effect
on the financial
statement
resulting from
the amendment
application
made in the
standard.

New or Summary of the most significant amendments Potential Effective date
reissued impact on the
standards financial
statements
Egyptian |1- This Standard reissued in 2023 allowing the Currently the The amendments of
Accounting usage of revaluation model when subsequent management adding the option to
Standard measurement studies the use revaluation
No.(10) | ymendment of some paragraphs This resulted in | Possibility of model are effective
amended | ;015104 1o using revaluation model option some changing the for financial periods
2023 fixec'l of the applicable Egyptian Accounting accounting starting on or after
assets and its Standards, which are as follows: policy followed | Jannary 1, 2023
depreciation | _ Egyptian Accounting Standard No (5) and using retmsl.]e.ctively, by
and “gccounting Policies, Change in Accounting revaluation recognizing the
Egyptian Estimates And Errors” model optien cumulative impact
Accounting | _ Rgoyptian Accounting Standard No (24) “Income  |mentioned in of the preliminary
Standard No | Togo© & @ this standard, | applying of the
(23) - Egyptian Accounting Standard No (30)” Interim {4nd evaluate revaluation model
intangible | Fipaneial Reporting - G0 the potential | shall be added to
assets - Egyptian Accounting Standard No (31) effect on the the balalome of
“Impairment of assets” financial revaluation surplus

by side equnity in
the beginning of
fiscal period in
which the company
applies this model
for the first time

The amendments of
these amendment for
are effective for .
financial periods
starting on or after
January 1, 2023
retrospectively, by
recognizing the
cumulative
accounting treatment
for bearer plant
applying preliminary
by adding the
balance of retained
earnings in the
beginning of the
fiscal period in
which the company
applied this
treatment for the first
time
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Orascom Investment Holding S.A.E.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2022

Egyptian 1- This standard was reissued in 2023, allowing | Management is | The amendments of
Accounting the use fair value model when subsequent currently adding the option to
Standard measurement of investment property. studying the use the fair valve
No. (34) 2- This resulted in amendment of some possibility of model are effective
amended paragraphs related to the use of the fair value changing the for financial periods
2023 model option in some of the applicable applied starting on or after
"Investment Egyptian Accounting Standards, which are as accounting January 1, 2023
property . follows: policy and retrospectively,
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (1) using the fair cumulative impact
"Presentation of Financial Statements” value model of the preliminary
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (5) option stated in | applying of the fair
" Accounting Policies, Changes in the standard value model shall be
Accounting Estimates and Errors”. and assessing added to the
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) the potential balance of retained
"The Effects of Changes in Foreign impact on the earnings or losses
Exchange Rates" financial at the beginning of
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (24) statements in the financial
"Income Taxes" case of using period in which the
— Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (30) this option. company applies
"Interim Financial Reporting " this model for the
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (31) first time.
"Impairment of Assets"
— Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (32)
"Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations"
- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49)
_ "Leasing Contracts”
Egyptian 1- This standard determines the principles of Management is | Egyptian
Accounting recognition of insurance contracts falling currently Accounting
Standard within the scope of this standard, and evaluating the | Standard No. (50) is
No. (50) determines their measurement, presentation, potential effective for annual
“Insnrance and disclosure. The objective of the standard | impactonthe | financial periods
Contracts". is to ensure that the company provides financial starting on or after
appropriate information that truthfully reflects | statements July 1. 2024, and if
those contracts, This information provides from the the Egyptian
users of the financial statements with the application of | Accounting
basis for assessing the impact of insurance the standard. Standard No. (50)
contracts on the company’s financial position, shall be applied for
financial performance, and cash flows. an earlier period, the
2- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (50) company should
replaces and cancels Egyptian Accounting disclose that fact.
Standard No. 37 "Insurance Contracts”,
3- Any reference to Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (37) in other Egyptian
Accounting Standards to be replaced by
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. {50).
4- The following Egyptian Accounting

Standards have been amended to comply with

the requirements of the application of

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (50)

"Insurance Contracts”, as foliows:

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (10)
"Fixed Assets ".

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (23)
"Intangible Assets”.

- EBgyptian Accounting Standard No. (34) "
Investment property ''.
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